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RFP #14-9677-11YD

December 18, 2014
ADDENDUM NO. 2
Request for Proposal: #14-9677-11YD
Subject:
Interactive Display System – Libbie Mill Library
Gentlemen/Ladies:

Please make the following changes, corrections, additions or deletions to the above referenced Request for Proposal:

This RFP and any addenda are available on the County of Henrico website at: www.henrico.us/purchasing  To download the RFP, click the link and save the document to your hard drive. To receive an email copy of this document contact dan23@henrico.us. 
The Request for Proposal Due Date has been extended until 3:00 p.m., January 13, 2015

Replace pages 2-4 and page 15 with the attached revised pages which further clarify the intent of this RFP.

Page 4, IV. ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE: See revised schedule below

V.  
ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE:



Request for Proposals Distributed


November 10, 2014



Advertised in newspaper



November 9, 2014

Pre-proposal Conference



November 20, 2014



Receive Written Proposals



January 13, 2015, 3:00 p.m.



Offeror Presentations to Selection 



Committee and Negotiations


January 29, 2015



Contract Begins After



February, 2015

1590 E. Parham Road/P. O. Box 90775/Henrico, Virginia 23273-0775

(804) 501-5660 Fax (804) 501-5693

Page 14, VII. PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORMAT:, #C. Narrative Summary to include as a minimum the following:  Change the following:

10.
Provide detailed implementation plan in order to guarantee that project will be completed and tested prior to the planned opening of the library on October 31, 2015. 


To read


10.
Provide a proposed final completion date for the project (all three (3) phases).  Include a detailed implementation plan in order to guarantee that the project will be completed and tested prior to the planned opening of the library on October 31, 2015.



11.
Pricing Schedule.


To read:


11.
Fee Proposal for Phase 1.

Questions & Answers are attached.
Unless otherwise changed by an addendum, all other information will remain the same.

Sincerely,

Cecelia H. Stowe, CPPO, C.P.M.
Purchasing Director 

Yvonne M. Daniel, CPPB, VCO

Procurement Supervisor

804-501-5686

dan23@henrico.us
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL – REVISED  - Addendum No. 2
INTERACTIVE DISPLAY SYSTEM – LIBBIE MILL LIBRARY COUNTY OF HENRICO

I.
INTRODUCTION:

The purpose and intent of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals from qualified firms for services necessary to conceive, design, fabricate, and install a new Interactive Display System (the “Display”) within the new Libbie Mill Library. 

The objective of the Display is to educate library patrons and visitors about the history and heritage of Henrico County.   The Successful Offeror must develop a design concept for the Display because the County has not yet developed one.

The library is currently under construction with occupancy scheduled for October 31, 2015. A copy of the library’s first floor plan is attached, indicating the general location proposed for the Display.  Images of the library are available at www.bcwh.com or www.henricolibrary.org/libbie-mill 

II.
SCOPE OF SERVICES:


A.
The Successful Offeror shall provide a Display, which shall be a standalone design located in the “welcome zone” of the library’s first floor.  Power and building network connectivity to the display system shall be provided by the base building contractor.  The System shall include a screen, or series of screens, that display interactive content in a touch-activated and/or motion-activated manner. The Display’s public interface must allow library patrons and visitors to interact with the digital content. The dimensions of the Display cannot exceed the space allocated on the floor plan.  

B.

The Successful Offeror shall provide a turn-key solution that includes, but is not limited to, digital content design, content research, digital content, software, digital hardware, display stands/mounting devices, implementation services, installation, training, and warranty as well as provisions for ongoing maintenance.


C.

The County will make its archives available to the Successful Offeror for use in the design of the Display.  The Successful Offeror should anticipate researching, creating, assembling, and providing additional content to supplement the information available in the County’s archives.


D.

Phase One – Concept Design
Phase One will be an iterative process that requires cooperation between County officials and employees and the Successful Offeror.  The Successful Offeror must develop a Concept Design that will enable completion of the Display within the County’s project budget.  During Phase One, the Successful Offeror shall:



1.
Conduct at least six interviews/co-creation sessions with County officials, employees, and agents,




2.
Review County archives and related resources for use in developing content for the Display, 




3.
Develop design concepts based on the interviews/sessions,




4.
Create sketches and text illustrating potential concepts for County review,


      5.
Present renderings and narratives illustrating refined concepts for County review, and
6.
Conduct a final Concept Design presentation meeting including:





a.
Presenting ideas about user experience,





b.
Making initial technology platform recommendations,





c.
Delivering preliminary project plans and project schedule, and




d.
Providing a final price proposal for the remainder of the project.
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E.

Phase Two – Schematic Design/Design Development



During Phase Two, the Successful Offeror shall:

1. Address County comments about the final Concept Design,

2. Further define user experience and application features,

3.
Work with Henrico County Recreation and Parks Department to develop, acquire and/or license additional historical information to be incorporated into the Display,


4.
Develop technology requirements and equipment lists,



5.
Refine design of support system for equipment and display devices,



6.
Refine the project plans and project schedule, 



7.
Conduct a final Schematic Design/Design Development presentation meeting with County officials and employees.


F.

Phase Three – Production, Installation, Startup, and Testing 




During Phase Three, the Successful Offeror shall:

1.
Produce text, graphics, and images to be incorporated into the Display

2.
Develop and conduct initial testing of software,


3.
Acquire technology, equipment, hardware, and accessories,


      4.
Acquire and/or fabricate the support system for equipment and Display devices,



5.
Coordinate final power, data, and support requirements with County,

6.
Conduct meetings with County to review progress, developments, and project schedule updates,

7.
Coordinate installation schedule and logistics with the County,

8.
Install all support systems, hardware, equipment, and related items in a neat and workmanlike manner,



9.
Connect all equipment to building power and data connections as needed,

10.
Conduct initial startup and testing of all software and equipment on site,

11.
Conduct final testing and inspection in the presence of County representatives and to their satisfaction, 

12.
Provide operation and maintenance manuals pertaining to all hardware, software, and equipment,

13.
Provide training to library staff including troubleshooting tips on the entire system.


G.
Continuing Services – Maintenance and Warranty

The Successful Offeror shall provide a one year written warranty for   on-site repair services for all hardware and software components, running for one year from the date of final acceptance of the system, renewable for up to 4 additional one-year periods at the option of the County.  The Offeror shall provide detailed information on the warranty and identify any non-covered items. 

H.
Offerors shall describe in detail the ownership of any deliverables created and developed for the County for this project.  

I.
Compensation for Phase One – Offerors must provide a fee proposal for Phase One (Concept Design), and the contract shall contain a fixed price for Phase One services.  Compensation for travel expenses, reproduction costs, shipping fees, and other similar fees must be listed separately.  Offerors must include an hourly rate schedule for staff proposed to work on the project.  Offerors may include compensation for additional interviews/co-creation sessions (beyond six) in the event such additional sessions become necessary for finalization of the
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Concept Design.  At the conclusion of Phase One, the County may terminate the contract without any further obligation to the Successful Offeror. The County will have full ownership of the Concept Design created in Phase One.

J.
Compensation for Phases Two, Three, and Continuing Services – Once the County has given final, written approval of the Successful Offeror’s Concept Design at the conclusion of Phase One, the parties will negotiate a fixed price as compensation for Phase Two (Schematic Design/Design Development), Phase Three (Production, Installation, Startup, and Testing), and Continuing Services (Maintenance and Warranty).  The total price for Phases One, Two, and Three shall not exceed $700,000. Therefore, the Successful Offeror shall agree in the contract that it will design a Display that meets the contract’s requirements at a total cost of $700,000 or less for Phases One, Two, and Three.  If the parties cannot agree on a price for Phases Two and Three, the County may terminate the contract without any further obligation to the Successful Offeror other than to pay for work that was requested by the County and performed by the Successful Offeror prior to termination.  

III.
COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES:

The County will designate an individual to act as the County’s representative with respect to the work to be performed under this contract.  Such individual shall have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and interpret and define the County’s policies and decisions with respect to the contract.  

IV.
ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE: See page 1 of Addendum No. 2

V.
GENERAL CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
A. Annual Appropriations

It is understood and agreed that the contract resulting from this procurement (“Contract”) shall be subject to annual appropriations by the County of Henrico, Board of Supervisors.  Should the Board fail to appropriate funds for this Contract, the Contract shall be terminated when existing funds are exhausted.  The successful offeror (“Successful Offeror” or “contractor”) shall not be entitled to seek redress from the County or its elected officials, officers, agents, employees, or volunteers should the Board of Supervisors fail to make annual appropriations for the Contract.


B.
Award of the Contract

1.
The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any informalities.

2.
The Successful Offeror shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days after Contract documents are presented for signature, execute and deliver to the Purchasing office the Contract documents and any other forms or bonds required by the RFP.

3. The Contract resulting from this RFP is not assignable.

4. Notice of award or intent to award may also appear on the Purchasing Office website:   http://www.henrico.us/purchasing/ 
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12.
Appendices – are optional for Offerors who wish to submit additional material that will clarify their response.
VIII.
PROPOSAL EVALUATION/SELECTION PROCESS:

A.
Offerors are to make written proposals, which present the Offeror's qualifications and understanding of the work to be performed.  Offerors are asked to address each evaluation criteria and to be specific in presenting their qualifications.  Proposals should be as thorough and detailed as possible so that the County may properly evaluate your capabilities to provide the required goods/services. 

B. Selection of the Successful Offeror will be based upon submission of proposals meeting the selection criteria.  The minimum selection criteria will include:  

	EVALUATION CRITERIA
	WEIGHT

	Functional Requirements

· Extent to which the proposed solutions satisfies the RFP functional requirements 
	25

	Implementation Services

· Project Approach

· Project Management

· Project Team

· Current Workload and ability to complete required work within County schedule


	30

	Experience and Qualifications

· Professional competence 

· Financial Stability of Firm

· References

· Resumes of proposed staff

· Organizational chart
	30

	Price
	10

	Quality of proposal submission/oral presentations
	5

	TOTAL
	100


C.
Selection will be made of two or more Offerors deemed to be fully qualified and best suited among those submitting proposals.  Negotiations shall then be conducted with each of the Offerors so selected.  Price shall be considered, but need not be the sole determining factor.  After negotiations have been conducted with each Offeror so selected, the County shall select the Offeror, which, in its opinion, has made the best proposal, and shall award the contract to that Offeror. Should the County determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one Offeror is fully qualified or that one Offeror is clearly more highly qualified that the others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to that Offeror.  The award document will be a contract incorporating by reference all the requirements, terms and conditions of the solicitation and the Offeror’s proposal as negotiated.
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INTERACTIVE DISPLAY SYSTEM – LIBBIE MILL LIBRARY
Questions and Answers (1-57)
December 18, 2014
Q1.
Is the space you have to work with 16' x 15' or are you literally looking for a screen or series of screens to fill that 16' x 15' space?

A1.
Refer to Addendum No 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q2.
If there will be a series of screens, do they need to all work together (Multi-touch) or do you want individual programs running on each monitor?

A2. 
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q3.

Can the screen(s) be wall mounted or instead of utilizing stands?

A3.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q4.

Will there be a need for any case work?

A4.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q5.
If you are looking for a solution that utilizes case work, how much depth is there to work with?  Do you have a photo of the "Welcome Zone" area?

A5.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q6.
Will creation, development and review meetings/sessions need to happen in person or can they be done remotely via Skype, etc.?

A6.
The County anticipates both types of meetings will be necessary and/or appropriate.

Q7.
Referring to page 14, Sections C4 and C11 of the RFP, what is the pricing proposal expected to cover?  Would it cover the Concept Development phase only given that the system will not have been designed prior to that point?

A7.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q8.
Are we going to be responsible for pricing out content for the system and submit the contract or will we work with the county to accomplish that after the award?

A8.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q9.

Why do you want a stand-alone system?

A9.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q10.
Why not a fixed wall mounted system?

A10.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q11.
Do you want the general public to be able to touch the actual video wall panels? Or would you prefer a Kiosk with a 42 inch monitor the public can touch that controls the Wall?

A11.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q12.
The feet on this system have to be large enough to stabilize the system. Therefore, the feet will stick out quite a bit. If the public were to stand in front of the system to touch the wall, folks will most undoubtedly trip over the feet of the stand, causing all kinds of problems. How do we address that?

A12.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q13.
What is the goal of the video sign?

A13.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q14.
What are the Demographics of the users?

A14.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q15.
Do you want the signage to associate with a data base?

A15.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q16.
Do you have a website that we can reference for design elements?

A16.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q17.
Do you have any document(s) that we can reference for design elements?

A17.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

 Q18.
Do you have High Resolution Native Source Files - graphics, videos, etc.?



 How many videos will be used? · How many photographs will be used?

Do you need graphics from our library? If so, how many and describe.

A18.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.


Q19.
Do you want updates to be provided by us?

A19.
This will be determined based upon the final Concept Design. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.


Q20.
Do you want the general public to touch the displays and manipulate the images that way? Or would you like to have one or two Kiosks with a monitor that controls the video wall?

A20.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q21.
Can you give us a brief description of how you envision the content to look like and how you want it to look? How many images on the screen at once – do you want any video on the screen?

A21.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q22.
Will there be any audio? Do you need speakers for narration of certain video etc.?

A22.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q23.
Can we get renderings of the interior of the library?

A23.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q24.
Can we get a list of interior finishes; carpet, trim, wall colors, lighting, etc. 

A24.
These will be provided to the Successful Offeror.

Q25.
Are there elevations and plan views of the space where the display will be going?

A25.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q26.
Is there an anticipated budget for the project?

A26.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q27.
Referencing Page 2, Item II, Scope of Services/A , Please provide details on the expectation for the 16’ x 5’ display. Is the measurement for available wall space for a hanging solution, or a footprint on the floor? If a wall hanging solution is desired, then are you requesting a full 16’ x 5’ of interactive video wall? Or can this be a combination of graphical and video displays designed to provide a visually appealing wall unit that incorporates separate interactive video displays.

A27.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q28.
Referencing Page, 2, Item II, Scope of Services/C -. Is this research within the counties library facilities, or elsewhere? What is the anticipated amount of time that offerers should include for the research?
A28.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q29.
How many source inputs will the County have feeding the system?

A29.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q30.
What Type of source inputs will you have, will they be Video inputs, computer or analog inputs?

A30.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q31.
What is the budget for the Libbie Mill Library Interactive Display System heritage wall? 

Which category does the IDS budget fall into: 

· Planning & Design $2,945,120

· Construction $19,912,289

· Furnishing, Equipment & Library Materials $7,715,914

A31.
A budget has not been established. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.


Q32.
How large should the heritage wall be? 

A32.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q33.
Are there floor plans or renderings of the welcome zone in which the IDS heritage wall will be located? 

A33.
See attached drawing of the library’s first floor plan.

Q34.
How interactive does the library want the heritage wall to be? Is it to be used for any research within the library, or is it strictly an educational component on the history of Henrico? 

A34.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q35.
Will the chosen firm have access to the Henrico County archives and historians to conduct research?

A35.
Yes. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q36.
Is there a specific aspect to Henrico history that the county wants to convey more than others?

A36.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q37.
Is there a library or interactive display system in another part of the state/country/globe that was the inspiration for this one? Or another IDS that the county would like for this one to resemble? 

A37.
The County researched a variety of interactive display systems prior to issuing the RFP.   At this time, Henrico County has not developed a design concept for this system.  It shall be the responsibility of the Successful Offeror to do such. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q38.
Will the library be used for large conferences and meetings for the public? 

A38.
Yes, the library will be used for conferences and meetings for the public. 

Q39.
Should there be an element of the heritage wall that is created to be understood and enjoyed by children of a certain age? 

A39.
Yes.

Q40.
Does the county prefer motion-activated or touch-activated screens for digital interaction? 

A40.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q41.
Will there be Special Collections at this library? 

A41.
There will be no “special collections”, as defined by generally accepted library science practices.

Q42.
Will there be other exhibit spaces in the library? If so, how many, what sizes, and where in relation to the welcome zone? 

A42.
Possibly, but they have not been identified at this time and are not part of this scope of work.

Q43.
What material is the floor in the welcome zone made of? 

A43.
Polished concrete.

Q44.
Is there any interest in projecting onto the ceiling or floor?
A44.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q45.
How high is the ceiling? 

A45.
The finished ceiling is 12’-0” above the finished floor.  The floor to floor height between the first and second floors is 16’-0”.

Q46.
What percentage of the county historical archives to be used for this IDS are currently digitized?

A46.
This is unknown at this time. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q47.
Can we get copies of the floor plans with the noted “welcome zone” identified?

A47.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q48.
Can additional information be provided on the County archives and existing resources? Of particular interest is the nature of digital content and how it is organized. Is there an accessible database or other searchable data source that can be leveraged for the project?

A48.
This is unknown at this time. Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q49.
Is there interest in audio being an element of the interactive displays and experience?

A49.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q50.
Can you provide any insight into the target budget or budget range?

A50.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q51.
The RFP notes a team of county representatives and partners. Can you provide a list of these individuals and/or teams?

A51.
This information will be provided to the Successful Offeror after award of contract.

Q52.
Are there notes from the pre-proposal meeting that can be shared?

A52.
The County does not publish notes from their pre-proposal meetings.

Q53.
Is there an attendees list from the pre-proposal meeting that can be shared?

A53.
The Pre-proposal meeting attendees list now posted on the County’s website and the eVA website.

Q54.
Is there an order of magnitude budgetary range for this project?

A54.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q55.
Can you further describe the content and functionality of the interactive to be produced under this contract?

A55.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q56.
Page 2 of the RFP states that “the County archives and existing resources will be made available for use in the design of the Interactive Display System.” Can you elaborate on the contents and breadth of these archives?

A56.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.

Q57.
Are there any existing interactive display systems that convey the function and/or content the County of Henrico is interested in producing?

A57.
Refer to Addendum No. 2 which contains the revised Scope of Services.
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